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Approval by the Board of Directors of the Financial Statements for the
period ending 31t December 2014

Date of Announcement 28/04/2015
Reference MRF 18

The following is a company announcement issued by Mariner Finance p.l.c. (the “Company”)
pursuant to the Malta Financial Services Authority Listing Rules.

QUOTE
At a meeting held today the 28t day of April 2015, the Board of Directors of Mariner Finance
p.l.c. approved the Financial Statements for the period ending 31% December 2014.

The group and company have registered a profit before tax of Eur5,497,380 (2013 -
Eur7,058,773) and Eur413,500 (2013 — Eur5,191) respectively. During the year, the group and
company earmarked Eur10,000,000 of amounts due to its parent for capitalisation. In fact the
net assets of the group and company at the end of the year amounted to Eur20,905,032 (2013
— Eur5,679,587), and that of the company Eur11,220,056 (2013 — Eur784,004) which show
significant movements over prior year.

The group’s operational results for 2014 were in line with both the group’s projections and
also 2013 results. The consolidated profit for the year after tax exceeded the group’s forecast
but, as expected, fell short of the profitability attained in Year 2013. The reason for this drop
in profitability was mainly due to higher net interest costs due to a refinancing exercise and
one off expenses of loss on derivative financial instrument amounting to Eur512,021.

The group’s operational performance for 2015 is expected to be in line with projections and
are therefore expected to exceed year 2014 levels.

UNQUOTE
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Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Directors' report
Year ended 31 December 2014

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the group and
the holding company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal activities
The group is engaged in the investment, development and operation of sea terminals,

namely in Riga, Latvia as well as property development.

The principal activity of the company is to act as an investment and holding company.

Performance review
The group and company have registered a profit before tax of Eur5,497,380 (2013 —

Eur7,058,773) and Eur413,500 (2013 — Eur3,191) respectively.

The increase in net assets for the group and company was impacted by the profit for the
year together with an increase in equity of Eur10,000,000 which represents amounts due
to the parent which were earmarked for capitalisation in 2014,

The net assets of the group and company at the end of the year amounted to
Eur20,905,032 (2013 — Eur5,679,587), and that of the company Eur/1,220,056 (2013 —
Eur784,004) .

In June 2014, the company raised Eur35,000,000 by issuing bonds to the public. The
proceeds raised have been utilized mainly to settle bank loans which had been raised to
finance acquisition of SIA Baltic Container Terminal and SIA Equinor Riga Limited

during 2014,

The group’s operational results for 2014 were in line with both the group’s projections
and also 2013 results. The consolidated profit for the year after tax exceeded the group’s
forecast but, as expected, fell short of the profitability attained in 2013. The reason for
this drop in profitability was mainly due to higher net interest costs due to a refinancing
exercise and one off expenses of loss on derivative financial instrument amounting to

Eur512,021.

The group’s operational performance for 2015 is expected to be in line with projections
and are therefore expected to exceed year 2014 levels.

Result and dividends
The result for the year ended 31 December 2014 is shown in the statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income on page 10. The group registered a profit for the
year after tax of Eur5, 167,527 as compared to Eur6,798,013 in 2013. The company
registered a profit for the year after tax of Eur378,134 as compared to Eur3,625 in 2013.

No final dividend is being recommended.




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Directors' report (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2014

Directors
The directors who served during the period were:

Marin Hili (Chairman)

Michela Borg (appointed 20 April 2014)
Edward Hili (appointed 20 April 2014)
Kevin Saliba (appointed 16 April 2014)
Lawrence Zammit (appointed 16 April 2014)
Nicholas Bianco (appointed 19 May 2014)
Richard Abdilla Castillo (resigned 20 February 2014)
Carmelo Hili (resigned 20 February 2014)
Joseph Beppe Hili (resigned 20 February 2014)

In accordance with the company's articles of association all the directors are to remain in
office.

Going concern
After reviewing the group’s and company’s budget for the next financial year, and other

longer term plans, the directors are satisfied that, at the time of approving the financial
statements, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Auditor
A resolution to reappoint Deloitte Audit Limited as auditor of the company will be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf on 28 April 2015 by:

Edward Hili
Chairman Director

Marin Hili




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required by the Companies Act (Cap. 386) to prepare financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the EU which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and its
group at the end of each financial year and of the profit or loss of the company and its
group for year then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the directors should:

select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable; and

prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the company and the group will continue in business as a going
concern.

The directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
the group and which enable the directors to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act (Cap. 386). This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The directors are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and the group, and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Statement of responsibility pursuant to the Listing Rules issued by the Listing
Authority

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge:

a.  In accordance with the Listing Rules, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the company and its group as at 31 December
2014 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the

EU; and

b.  In accordance with the Listing Rules, the Directors' report includes a fair review of
the performance of the business and the position of the Issuer and the undertakings
included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

Marin Hili Edward Hili
Chairman Director




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement

Introduction

Pursuant to the Listing Rules as issued by the Listing Authority of the Malta Financial
Services Authority, Mariner Finance p.l.c., (the 'company') is hereby reporting on the
extent of its adoption of the Code of Principles of Good Corporate Governance (the
'Principles’) contained in Appendix 5.1 of the Listing Rules.

The Board acknowledges that the Code does not dictate or prescribe mandatory rules but
recommends principles of good practice. Nonetheless, the Board strongly believes that
the Principles are in the best interest of the shareholders and other stakeholders since
they ensure that the Directors, Management and employees of the group adhere to
internationally recognised high standards of Corporate Governance.

The group currently has a corporate decision-making and supervisory structure that is
tailored to suit the group's requirements and designed to ensure the existence of adequate
checks and balances within the group, whilst retaining an element of flexibility,
particularly in view of the size of the group and the nature of its business. The group
adheres to the Principles, except for those instances where there exist particular
circumstances that warrant non-adherence thereto, or at least postponement for the time

being.

Additionally, the Board recognizes that, by virtue of the Listing Rules 5.101. The
company is exempt from making available the information required in terms of Listing
Rules 5.97.1 to0 5.97.3; 5.97.6 and 5.97.7.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the company is responsible for the overall long-term direction
of the group, in particular in being actively involved in overseeing the systems of control
and financial reporting and that the group communicates effectively with the market.

The Board of Directors meets regularly, with a minimum of four times annually, and is
currently composed of six Members, two of which are completely independent from the
company or any other related companies.

Mr. Lawrence Zammit and Mr. Nicholas Bianco are independent non-executive directors
of the company.

Executive Director

Marin Hili - Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Non-Executive Directors

Edward Hili - (appointed 20th April 2014)
Michela Borg - (appointed 20th April 2014)
Kevin Saliba - (appointed 16th April 2014)
Lawrence Zammit - (appointed 16th April 2014)
Nicholas Bianco - (appointed 19th May 2014)




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement (continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

The Board Meetings are attended by the Finance Manager of the group in order for the
Board to have direct access to the financial operation of the group. This is intended to,
inter alia, ensure that the policies and strategies adopted by the Board are effectively

implemented.

The remuneration of the Board is reviewed periodically by the shareholders of the
company.

The company ensures that it provides directors with relevant information to enable them
to effectively contribute to board decisions.

The directors are fully aware of their duties and obligations, and whenever a conflict of
interest in decision making arises, they refrain from participating in such decisions.

Audit Committee

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee, are modelled on the principles set out
in the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its supervisory
and monitoring responsibility by reviewing the group financial statements and
disclosures, monitoring the system of internal control established by management as well
as the audit processes.

The Board of Directors established the Audit Committee, which meets regularly, with a
minimum of four times annually, and is currently composed of the following individuals:

Mr. Kevin Saliba (Chairman)
Mr. Lawrence Zammit
Mr. Nicholas Bianco

Mr. Lawrence Zammit is an independent non- executive director of the company who the
Board considers to be competent in accounting and/or auditing in terms of the Listing

Rules.

The Finance Manager of the company is also present during the Audit Committee
meetings.

The Audit Committee met once during the year 2014. However, communication with and
between the Secretary, top level management and the Committee is ongoing and
considerations that required the Committee's attention were acted upon between
meetings and decided by the Members (where necessary) through electronic circulation
and correspondence.




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement (continued)

Internal Control

While the Board is ultimately responsible for the group's internal controls as well as their
effectiveness, authority to operate the group is delegated to the Chief Executive Officer.

The group's system of internal controls is designed to manage all the risks in the most
appropriate manner. However, such controls cannot provide an absolute elimination of
all business risks or losses. Therefore, the Board, inter alia, reviews the effectiveness of
the group's system of internal controls in the following manner:

1. Reviewing the group's strategy on an on-going basis as well as setting the
appropriate business objectives in order to enhance value for all stakeholders;

2. Implementing an appropriate organizational structure for planning, executing,
controlling and monitoring business operations in order to achieve Group objectives;

3. Appointing and monitoring the Chief Executive Officer whose function is to manage
the operations of the group;

4. ldentifying and ensuring that significant risks are managed satisfactorily; and

5. Company policies are being observed.

Relations with the market

The market is kept up to date with all relevant information, and the company regularly
publishes such information on its website to ensure consistent relations with the market.

Non-compliance with the code

The board considers the company to be in compliance with the Code save for the
following exceptions:

Principle 2.1: Roles of Chairman and CEO

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are both carried out by Marin Hili.
Although the Code recommends that the role of Chairman and Chief Executive Office
are kept separate, the Directors believe that Mr. Hili should occupy both positions,
particularly in view of the experience and stature he brings to both the Board and
executive management team of the Company. In terms of Principle 3.1, which calls for
the appointment of a senior independent Director where the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer are carried out by the same person, the Board has appointed Lawrence
Zammit as the indicated senior independent Director.

Principle 4: Organisation structure

The company is an investment company which does not require an elaborate
management structure. Its CEO is responsible for day-to-day management of the Group,
assisted, when necessary from time to time, by members of the senior management teams
of the Group companies. The directors believe the current organisational structures are
adequate for current activities of the company. The Directors will maintain these
structures under continuous review to ensure that they meet the changing demands of the
business and to strengthen the checks and balances necessary for better corporate

governance.




Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Corporate governance statement (continued)

Non-compliance with the code (continued)

Principle 6: Information and professional judgement

Under the present circumstances, full adherence by the Issuer with the provisions of
Principle 6 of the Code is not deemed necessary taking into account the size, nature and
operations of the Issuer. The Issuer does not feel the need to establish and/or implement
a succession plan for senior management in light of its existing organisational structures.
The Directors will maintain the existing arrangements under continuous review to ensure
that such meet the changing demands of the business and to strengthen the checks and
balances necessary for better corporate governance.

Principle 8: Committees

Under the present circumstances the Board does not consider it necessary to appoint a
remuneration committee and nomination committee as decisions on these matters are
taken at shareholder level. The Issuer considers that the members of the Board provide
the level of skill, knowledge and experience expected in terms of the Code. Furthermore
the company does not have any employees other than directors and company secretary.

Principle 11: Conflict of interest

Under present structure, the majority of Directors of the Issuer are Directors of its parent
company Mariner Capital Limited and ultimate beneficial shareholders of the Group, and
as such are susceptible to conflicts arising between the potentially diverging interests of
said shareholders and the Group as well as conflicts of interest which may arise in
relation to transactions involving the Issuer and Mariner Capital Limited. Kevin Saliba, a
director and company secretary, is also the Chief Financial Officer of Mariner Capital
Limited. The audit committee of the Issuer has the task of ensuring that any potential
conflicts of interest that may arise at any moment, pursuant to these different roles held
by Directors, are handled in the best interest of the Issuer and according to law. To the
extent known or potentially known to the Issuer as at the date of this Registration
Document, there are no potential conflicts of interest between any duties of the Directors
and their private interests and/or their other duties which require disclosure in terms of

the Regulation.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf on 28 April 2015 by:

/ ’§¢}5"
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Matin Hili Edward Hili
Cﬂ airman Director
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Deloitte Place
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Malta
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VAT Reg No: MT2013 6121
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Independent auditor’s report on corporate governance statement
to the members of

Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Pursuant to Listing Authority Listing Rules 5.94 and 5.97 issued by the Malta Financial Services
Authority, the directors are required to include in their annual financial report a Corporate
Governance Statement to the extent to which they have adopted the Code of Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and the effective measures that they have taken to ensure compliance with
these principles.

Our responsibility is laid down by Listing Rule 5.98, which requires us to include a report on the
Corporate Governance Statement.

We read the Corporate Governance Statement and consider the implications for our report if we
become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information included in the annual

financial report.

We are not required to perform additional work necessary to, and we do not, express an opinion on
the effectiveness of either the company’s or the group’s system of internal control or its corporate
governance procedures.

In our opinion, the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 5 to 8 has been properly
prepared in accordance with the requirements of Listing Rules 5.94 and 5.97.

Annabelle Zammit Pace as Director
in the name and on behalf of
Deloitte Audit Limited

Registered auditor

28 April 2015

Delpitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related
entities, DTTL and ea;h of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as "“Deloitte Global”) does not provide services to clients
Please see www.deloitte.com/mt/about for a more detailed description of DTTL and its member firms.

Deloitte Malta refers to a givil pgrtnership, constituted between limited fiability companies, and its affiliated operating entities; Deloitte Services Limited, Deloitte Legal,
I?elome Technology Solutions Limited and Deloitte Audit Limited. The latter is authorised to provide audit services in Malta in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act. A
list of the corporate partners, as well as the principals authorised to sign reports on behalf of the firm, is available at www.deloitte.com/mt/about. 9






Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2014

Notes
Revenue 6
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Administrative expenses
Other operating income 7
Operating profit
Investment income 8
Investment losses 9
Finance costs 10
Profit before tax 11
Income tax expense 14

Profit for the year attributable
to equity holders of the
Holding Company

Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Net gain on available

for-sale financial assets

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable

to equity holders of the
Holding Company

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
16,950,345 17,647,774 - -
(6,072,840) (6,946,166) . -
10,877,505 10,701,608 - -
(3,886,392) (3,995,471) (58,696) (4,003)
665,912 463,007 - -
7,657,025 7,169,144 (58,696) (4,003)
349,188 1,010,335 1,344,251 10,444
(615,021) (1,250) (3,000) (1,250)
(1,993,812) (1,119,456) (869,055) -
5,497,380 7,058,773 413,500 5,191
(329,853)  (260,760) (35,366) (1,566)
5,167,527 6,798,013 378,134 3,625
57,918 65,186 57,918 65,186
57,918 65,186 57,918 65,186
5,225,445 6,863,199 436,052 68,811

10



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statements of financial position
31 December 2014

Notes
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Goodwill 30
Intangible asset 16
Property, plant and equipment 15
Investment property 17
Investment in subsidiaries 18
Available-for-sale investments 18
Loans and receivables 18
Current assets
Loans and receivables 18
Inventories 19
Trade and other receivables 20
Current tax asset
Cash and cash equivalents 28
Total assets
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 21
Other financial liabilities 23
Bank loans 22
Current tax liability
Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities 23
Debt securities in issue 25
Bank loans 22
Deferred tax liability 24

Total liabilities

Net assets

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
13,184,904 13,184,904 - -
283,514 370,804 - -
31,461,531 30,898,567 - -
5,183,596 5,183,596 - -
- - 2,800 -
335,820 280,902 335,820 280,902
2,929,998 2,934,998 41,843,649 -
53,379,363 52,853,771 42,182,269 280,902
500,000 - 2,426,351 -
399,594 387,476 - -
3,548,051 3,421,641 1,857,180 518,411
45118 765,199 - -
2,162,138 1,156,921 73,192 38,631
6,654,901 5,731,237 4,356,723 557,042
60,034,264 58,585,008 46,538,992 837,944
1,704,161 1,142,085 883,734 7,283
274,251 273,049 46,249 46,249
188,187 4,333,084 - -
i ; 34,000 408
2,166,599 5,748,218 963,983 53,940
827,293 16,004,137 - -
34,354,953 - 34,354,953 -
1,270,259 30,605,534 - -
510,128 547,532 - -
36,962,633 47,157,203 34,354,953 -
39,129,232 52,905,421 35,318,936 53,940
20,905,032 5,679,587 11,220,056 784,004

11



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statements of financial position (continued)
31 December 2014

Group Holding company
Notes 2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
EQUITY
Share capital 26 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Other equity 27 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 -
Other reserves (1,898,805) (1,898,805) - =
Fair value reserve 180,193 122,275 180,193 122,275
Retained earnings 12,123,644 6,956,117 539,863 161,729
Total equity 20,905,032 5,679,587 11,220,056 784,004

These financial statements were approved by the directors, authorised for issue on 28 April

Edward Hili
Director

12



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statement of changes in equity - Group
Year ended 31 December 2014

Balance at
1 January 2013

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Effect on other equity

recognised on acquisition
of subsidiaries (note 30)

Balance at
1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive
income for the year

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Shareholders’ loans
earmarked for
capitalisation (note 27)

Balance at
31 December 2014

Share Other Fair value Other Retained
capital equity reserve reserves earnings Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
500,000 - 57,089 - 168,104 715,193
E - B - 6,798,013 6,798,013
- - 65,186 - - 65,186
- - 65,186 - 6,798,013 6,863,199
- - - (1,898,805) - (1,898,805)
500,000 - 122,275 (1,898,805) 6,956,117 5,679,587
- - - - 5,167,527 5,167,527
- - 57,918 - - 57,918
- - 57,918 - 5,167,527 5,225,445
- 10,000,000 - - - 10,000,000
180,193 (1,898,805) 12,123,644 20,905,032

500,000 10,000,000

13



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statement of changes in equity - Holding company
Year ended 31 December 2014

Share Other Fair value Retained
capital equity reserve earnings Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur

Balance at
1 January 2013 500,000 - 57,089 158,104 715,193
Profit for the year - - - 3,625 3,625
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - 65,186 - 65,186
Total comprehensive
income for the year - - 65,186 3,625 68,811
Balance at
1 January 2014 500,000 - 122,275 161,729 784,004
Profit for the year - - - 378,134 378,134
Other comprehensive
income for the year - - 57,918 - 57,918
Total comprehensive
income for the year - ~ 57,918 378,134 436,052
Shareholders’ loans
earmarked for
capitalisation (note 27) - 10,000,000 B - 10,000,000
Balance at
31 December 2014 500,000 10,000,000 180,193 539,863 11,220,056

14



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statement of cash flows
Year ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Amortisation

Interest income

Bond expenses amortisation
Interest expense

Investment income

Investment losses

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Operating profit /(loss) before working
capital movements

Movement in trade and other receivables
Movement in trade and other payables
Movement in inventories

Cash flows from/ (used in) operations
Interest received

Tax paid

Tax refund

Interest paid

Net cash flows from/ (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Repayment of loans from related parties
Purchase of property plant and equipment
Amounts receivable from related party
Payment by SIA Mariner Finance Baltic
for the acquisition of SIA Baltic Container
Terminal and SIA Equinor Riga by
Mariner Capital Limited

Income received from

available-for-sale investments
Investment in subsidiary

Loan to subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

acquired on restructuring

Net cash flows (used in) / from
investing activities

Group Holding Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
5,497,380 7,058,773 413,500 5,191
1,382,182 1,310,143 - -
92,240 90,597 “ )
(336,059)  (967,308)  (1,332,529) (50)
11,151 - 11,151 -
1,993,812 1,119,456 869,055 .
(11,722) (10,394) (11,722) (10,394)
3,000 1,250 3,000 1,250
- 85,680 - -
8,631,984 8,688,197 (47,545) (4,003)
(626,410) 2,565,370 (513,001) (88)
1,064,122 (2,287,484) 7,396 2,444
(12,117) 27,026
9,057,579 8,993,109 (553,150) (1,647)
336,059 967,308 506,761 50
R (122,579) (1,774) (9,675)
352,824 - & ,
(1,993,812) (1,119,456) . :
7,752,650 8,718,382 (48,163) (11,272)
5,000 - - -
(1,950,571) (3,908,787) s :
(5,451,616) (9,511,656) - -
- (26,000,000) S 2
11,722 10,394 11,722 10,394
- - (2,800) .
. - (34,270,000) =
~ 4,595,086 - -
(7,385,465) (34,814,963)  (34,261,078) 10,394

15



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Statement of cash flows (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2014

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of debenture stock

Bond issue expense paid

Drawdown/(repayment) of bank loans
Proceeds from related party loan
(Repayment)/drawdown of loans

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year (note 28)

Group Holding Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
35,000,000 - 35,000,000 -
(656,198) = (656,198) g
(33,480,173) 26,336,339 - -
- - 10,000,000 -
(225,597) 877,654 - -
638,032 27,213,993 34,343,802 -
1,005,217 1,117,412 34,561 (878)
1,156,921 39,509 38,631 39,509
2,162,138 1,156,921

73,192 38,631

16



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2014

1.  Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financial instruments and
investment property which are stated at their fair value, and land and buildings
which are stated at their revalued amounts, and in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU. The significant accounting
policies are set out below.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, Mariner Capital Limited
became the direct parent entity of Mariner Finance p.l.c., and acquired and became
the ultimate parent of SIA Baltic Container Terminal and SIA Equinor Riga
through its direct subsidiary, SIA Mariner Finance Baltic. Mariner Finance p.l.c.
was not the parent of any entity of the Mariner Capital Limited Group as at
31 December 2013.

During the first two quarters of 2014 the Mariner Capital Limited group had
entered into various linked transactions (“the restructuring transactions”). As a
result of the restructuring transactions, Mariner Finance p.l.c. became the direct
parent of SIA Mariner Baltic Holdings. As part of the restructuring transactions
SIA Mariner Baltic Holdings became the direct parent of SIA Mariner Finance
Baltic (and the indirect parent of SIA Baltic Container Terminal) and SIA Equinor

Riga.
Acquisition of entities and businesses under common control

The restructuring transactions resulted in Mariner Finance p.l.c. gaining control
during 2014 of its direct subsidiary entity SIA Mariner Baltic Holdings and its
indirect subsidiary entities SIA Mariner Finance Baltic, SIA Baltic Container
Terminal and SIA Equinor Riga (“the subsidiaries™).

The acquisition of these subsidiaries by Mariner Finance p.l.c. falls outside the
scope of International Financial Reporting Standard 3 — Business Combinations
(“IFRS 3”) because the transaction merely represents a group reorganisation and
because in terms of paragraph 2(c) of IFRS 3, the acquisition of these entities by
Mariner Finance p.l.c. is a combination of businesses under common control in
which all the combining entities are ultimately controlled by the same party,
Mariner Capital Limited, both before and after the business combination and that
control is not transitory.
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1.  Basis of preparation (continued)
Acquisition of entities and businesses under common control (continued)

In accordance with ‘International Accounting Standard 8 — Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ (“IAS 8”), in the absence of an IFRS
that specifically applies to a transaction, other event or condition, management
should use its judgment in developing and applying an accounting policy that is
relevant to the decision making needs of the users and is reliable. In relation to
this specific transaction, the use of predecessor accounting by Mariner Finance
p.l.c. is considered to be a generally accepted accounting approach to account for
the acquisition of the entities under common control.

The acquisition of the subsidiaries acquired from the direct parent by Mariner
Finance p.lc. has been accounted for under the principles of predecessor
accounting as from the date these subsidiaries were acquired by its parent, Mariner
Capital Limited on 1 January 2013. In terms of predecessor accounting, an
acquirer is not required to be identified. The Company has incorporated the
acquired entities at their previous carrying amounts of assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities included in the consolidated financial statements of its parent,
Mariner Capital Limited.

This accounting treatment may give rise to differences on acquisition between the
consideration given in exchange for the acquired entities and the amounts at which
the assets and liabilities of the acquired entities are initially recognised; any such
differences are included within equity unless they represent amounts payable in the
subsequent period, in which case, these are include within liabilities.

The significant accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Company determines when transfers are deemed to have
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy at the end of each reporting period.
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2.

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
Mariner Finance p.l.c. (or the “Company”) and subsidiary entities controlled by the
Company. Control exists when the Company has power over the investee, is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of its returns.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that give the Company the current
ability to direct the investee’s relevant activities are taken into account.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for by applying the acquisition
method. The consideration is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the acquirer in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred,
except for costs to issue debt or equity securities. The acquiree’s identifiable assets
and liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date, except as specifically required by other EU-IFRSs. A
contingent liability assumed in a business combination is recognised at the
acquisition date if there is a present obligation that arises from past events and its
fair value can be measured reliably.

Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation may be initially measured either at the present ownership
instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement basis is made on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. All other components of non-controlling
interests shall be measured at their acquisition-date fair values, unless another
measurement basis is required. After initial recognition, non-controlling interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the holding company’s
owners’ equity therein. Non-controlling interests in the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of consolidated subsidiaries are also disclosed separately.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date control ceases.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Where necessary, in preparing these consolidated financial statements, appropriate
adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by group entities. Intra-group balances,
transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of:
(a) the aggregate of:
(i) the consideration transferred;
(i) the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; and
(iii) in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition-date
fair value of the acquiree’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; and
(b) the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed.

The goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Any gain on a bargain
purchase, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit and loss.

On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Business combinations achieved in stages

Where a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held
interests in the acquired entity are re measured to fair value at the acquisition date
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the acquiree
are accounted for (that is, reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to
retained earnings) in the same manner as would be required if the interests were

disposed of.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are classified into the following classes — land and
buildings, plant and equipment, furniture, fittings and equipment, computer
hardware and motor vehicles.

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. Expenditure on repairs and maintenance of property, plant
and equipment is recognised as an expense when incurred.
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes and other plant and equipment, are stated in the
statement of financial position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value on
the basis of their existing use at the date of the business combination, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Other tangible assets are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment are derecognised on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising
from derecognition represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if
any, and the carrying amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition.

Properties in the course of construction

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative
purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment loss. Cost includes, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the group’s accounting policy on borrowing costs. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are available for use.

Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or
both. Investment property is recognised as an asset when it is probable that the
future economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow
to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition
investment property is stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Investment property is derecognised on disposal or when it is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. Gains or losses on derecognition represent the difference between the net
disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount and are recognised in profit or
loss in the period of derecognition.
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the depreciable assets are available for use and is
charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost, less any estimated residual
value, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the
following bases:

Buildings - 1.7% - 8% per annum
Plant and equipment - 5% - 15% per annum
Furniture, fixtures and equipment - 10% - 25% per annum
Computer hardware - 20% - 33.33% per annum
Motor vehicles - 8% - 20% per annum

The depreciation method applied, the residual value and the useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the group’s entities and the
cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost, being the fair value at the
acquisition date for intangible assets acquired in a business combination.
Expenditure on an intangible asset is recognised as an expense in the period when
it is incurred unless it forms part of the cost of the asset that meets the recognition
criteria or the item is acquired in a business acquisition and cannot be recognised
as an intangible asset, in which case it forms part of goodwill at the acquisition
date.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed to determine whether it is finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with a finite useful life are amortised. Amortisation is
charged to profit or loss so as to write off the cost of intangible assets less any
estimated residual value, over their estimated useful lives. The amortisation
method applied, the residual value and the useful life are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from their use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition
represent the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying
amount, and are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

22



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2014

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
(i)  Computer software

In determining the classification of an asset that incorporates both intangible
and tangible elements, judgement is used in assessing which element is more
significant. Computer software which is an integral part of the related
hardware is classified as property, plant and equipment and accounted for in
accordance with the company’s accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment. Where the software is not an integral part of the related
hardware, this is classified as an intangible asset and carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Computer software classified as an intangible asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over five years.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the company. Investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for on the basis of the direct equity interest and are
stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Dividends from the
investment are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs for all financial assets or financial liabilities not
classified at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in
the statement of financial position when the company has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial assets expire or when the entity transfers the financial asset and
the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished. This occurs
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other financial instruments (continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. #

()

(i)

(iii)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are classified with current assets and are stated at their
nominal value unless the effect of discounting is material, in which case
trade receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired.

Loans and other receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market other than
those that are held for trading or are designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale financial assets or
those for which the company may not recover substantially all of its initial
investment other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognised or impaired and
through the amortisation process.

Investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets
that are either designated in this category by the company or not classified as
loans and receivables, or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at
their fair value.

Gains and losses arising from a change in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for impairment losses and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until the financial asset is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment. Interest calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Other financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Bank borrowings

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Bank loans are carried at
face value due to their market rate of interest.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are classified with current liabilities and are stated
at their nominal value unless the effect of discounting is material, in which
case trade payables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Other borrowings

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing bank overdrafts are carried
at face value in view of their short-term maturities.

Subsequent to initial recognition, other borrowings are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method unless the effect of

discounting is immaterial.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated and effective hedging
instruments. During the year under review and during the prior year, the
company did not designate any of its derivative financial instruments in a
hedging relationship for accounting purposes. After initial recognition,
derivative financial instruments are measured at their fair value. Gains and
losses arising from a change in fair value are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

(viii) Shares issued by the company

Ordinary shares issued by the company are classified as equity instruments.

25



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2014

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method and comprises expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads based on the normal level of
activity. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Impairment

All assets are tested for impairment except for financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, investment property measured at fair value and
inventories. At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of assets is
reviewed to determine whether there is any indication or objective evidence of
impairment, as appropriate, and if any such indication or objective evidence exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually, irrespective of whether an
indication of impairment exists.

In the case of financial assets that are either carried at amortised cost or classified
as available-for-sale investments, objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data about the following loss events — significant financial difficulty of
the issuer (or counterparty) and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of financial
assets since the initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the group, including (i) adverse
changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group; or (ii) national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the assets in the group and a
decrease in property prices for mortgages in the relevant area or adverse changes
in industry conditions that affect the borrowers in the group.

In addition to the above loss events, objective evidence of impairment for an
investment in an equity instrument includes information about significant changes
with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost of the
investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered and a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment (continued)

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

For loans and receivables, if there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced

directly.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been
recognised directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, the cumulative impairment loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss and is measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of other assets tested for impairment, the recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal (which is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date) and value in use (which is the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived, discounted using the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset). Where the recoverable amount is less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount, as calculated.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication of impairment.

Goodwill is allocated to each of the company’s cash-generating units expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Where a cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal.

Impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the impairment loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed
the amount in the revaluation surplus for that asset.
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2, Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment (continued)

For loans and receivables, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously rrecognised impairment loss is
reversed directly.

In the case of other assets tested for impairment, an impairment loss recognised in
a prior year is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years.

Where an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit subsequently reverses, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets of the unit, except for goodwill, pro rata
with the carrying amounts of those assets. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Impairment reversals are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount in which case, the impairment reversal is
recognised in other comprehensive income and increases the revaluation surplus
for that asset, unless an impairment loss on the same asset was previously
recognised in profit or loss.

For a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount is not increased above the lower of
its recoverable amount (if determinable) and the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. The amount of the reversal of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit, except for goodwill.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an available-for-sale investment
in an equity instrument are not reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in profit or loss for an available-for-sale investment in a debt
instrument are reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition of
the impairment loss.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for services provided in the normal course of business, net of value added tax and
discounts, where applicable. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the company and these can be measured
reliably. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

M

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of the risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time of shipment
or delivery, when the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably and when the company retains neither
continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold.

Provision of services

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised in the period in which
the services are rendered, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction assessed on the basis of the actual service provided as a
proportion of the total services to be provided. For practical purposes, when
services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified
period of time, revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other method better
represents the stage of completion.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the asset’s net carrying amount.

Rent receivable
Rent is recognised as disclosed in the accounting policy on leases.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.
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Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include the costs incurred in obtaining external financing.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised from the time that
expenditure for these assets and borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare these assets for their intended use or sale are in
progress. Borrowing costs are capitalised until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are suspended
during extended period in which active development is interrupted. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases. Lease classification is made at the inception of
the lease, which is the earlier of the date of the lease agreement and the date of
commitment by the parties to the principal provisions of the lease.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in statement of financial position
as assets of the group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments and include initial direct costs.

Leased assets are presented in the statement of financial position according to their
nature and are tested for impairment in accordance with the company’s accounting
policy on impairment. Depreciable leased assets are depreciated in accordance
with the company’s accounting policy on property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets. Rental income from operating leases, less the aggregate cost of
incentives given to the lessee, is recognised as income in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which use benefit derived from the leased
asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Rentals payable under operating leases, less the aggregate benefit of incentives
received from the lessor, are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly to equity, in which
case the current tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income or in equity,
as appropriate.

Current tax is based on the taxable result for the period. The taxable result for the
period differs from the result as reported in profit or loss because it excludes items
which are non-assessable or disallowed and it further excludes items that are
taxable or deductible in other periods. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of
temporary differences arising from differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the company has a legally
enforceable right to set off its current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Employee benefits

The company contributes towards the state pension in accordance with local
legislation. The only obligation of the company is to make the required
contributions. Costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Currency translation

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented in their
functional currency, being the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (its functional currency). For the purposes of the group
financial statements, the results and financial position of each entity are expressed
in Euro, which is the functional currency of the company.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
re-translated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated. Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items and on the retranslation of monetary items are included in profit or
loss. Exchange differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the re-translation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. For such non-
monetary items, any exchange component of that gain or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting group financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations (including comparatives) are expressed in Euro
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses items (including comparatives) are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the
period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and transferred to the Group Exchange
Reserves. Such translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated

at the closing rate.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits.
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
Dividends

Dividends to holders of equity instruments are recognised as liabilities in the
period in which they are declared. Dividends to holders of equity instruments are
recognised directly to equity.

3.  Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty

In the process of applying the group’s and company’s accounting policies,
management has made no judgements which can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the financial statements and, at the end of the reporting period, there
were no key assumptions concerning the future, or any other key sources of
estimation uncertainty, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year other
than as disclosed in note 1 and also as disclosed below:

The group reviews property, plant and equipment, investments and loans and
receivables, including trade receivables, to evaluate whether events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
company reviews investment in subsidiaries, loans and receivables and other
investments for impairment. At the period-end there was no objective evidence of
impairment in this respect.

In addition, the group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if
there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. Determining whether the
carrying amounts of these assets can be realised requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the cash generating units.

Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated, to the cash-generating
units (“CGUSs”) that are expected to benefit from that business combination.

The carrying amount of goodwill amounting to Eurl3,184,904 arises on a business
combination (note 30), and has been allocated to the business of Baltic Container
Terminals SIA.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices and direct
costs during the period. The directors estimate discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessment of the time value of money and specific
risks. The growth rates are based on forecasts. Changes in selling price and direct
costs are based on best practices and expectations of future changes in the market.
The group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management.
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3. Judgements in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

The assessment of recoverability of the carrying amount of goodwill includes:

o forecasted projected cash flows for the next 5 years and projection of
terminal value using the perpetuity method;

. growth rate of 3% and

] use of 8.92% (pre-tax) to discount the projected cash flows to net present
values.

Based on the above assessment, management expects the carrying amount of
goodwill to be recoverable and there is no impairment in value of the goodwill.

4,  Initial application of an International Financial Reporting Standard and
International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective

Initial application of an International Financial Reporting Standard
In the current period, the company and the group have applied the following:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements builds on existing principles by
identifying the concept of control as the determining factor in whether an entity
should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the determination
of control where this is difficult to assess. IFRS 10 introduces a single
consolidation model for all entities based on control, irrespective of the nature of
the investee (that is, whether an entity is controlled through voting rights of the
investors or otherwise). IFRS 10 supersedes SIC-12 Consolidation—Special
Purpose Entities and parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements. This standard is effective for annual periods beginning on are after 1
January 2014 for companies preparing their financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European
Union. The adoption of this IFRS did not change the classification of the
company’s investees.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities addresses disclosure
requirements for certain interests in other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, subsidiaries and unconsolidated structured entities. The objective of
IFRS 12 is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its
financial statements to evaluate (a) the nature of, and risks associated with, its
interests in other entities; and (b) the effects of those interests on its financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. This standard is effective for
annual periods beginning on are after 1 January 2014 for companies preparing
their financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.
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4. Initial application of an International Financial Reporting Standard and
International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective

At the date of approval of these financial statements, a number of International
Financial Reporting Standards were in issue but not yet effective. The directors are
assessing the potential impact of these International Financial Reporting Standards
on the group and company’s financial statements.

The final version of IFRS 9 brings together the classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting phases of the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. IFRS 9 introduces a
logical approach for the classification.

The Standard supersedes all previous versions of IFRS 9.

[FRS 9 introduces a logical approach for the classification of financial assets,
which is driven by cash flow characteristics and the business model in which an

asset is held.

The new model also results in a single, forward-looking ‘expected loss’
impairment model that will require more timely recognition of expected credit
losses.

IFRS 9 is effective from 1 January 2018. This standard has not as yet been
endorsed by the European Union.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers specifies how and when an IFRS
reporter will recognise revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users
of financial statements with more informative, relevant disclosures. The standard
supersedes IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11 Construction Contracts and a number of
revenue-related interpretations. Application of the standard is mandatory for all
IFRS reporters and it applies to nearly all contracts with customers: the main
exceptions being leases, financial instruments and insurance contracts. [FRS 15 is
effective from 1 January 2017.
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4.  Inmitial application of an International Financial Reporting Standard and
International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

The December 2014 amendments to IAS 1 are effective from | January 2016. This
amendment has yet not been endorsed by the European Union. The amendments
aim to clarify IAS 1 and to address perceived impediments to preparers exercising
their judgement in presenting their financial reports. The amendments are designed
to further encourage companies to apply professional judgement in determining
what information to disclose in their financial statements. The amendments make
clear that materiality applies to the whole of financial statements and that the
inclusion of immaterial information can inhibit the usefulness of financial
disclosures. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that companies should use
professional judgement in determining where and in what order information is
presented in the financial disclosures.

The directors anticipate that the adoption of other International Financial
Reporting Standards that were in issue at the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, but not yet effective, will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the company or the Group in the period of initial
application.

5.  Segment information

The group operates one main business activity which is the operation of a sea
terminal in Riga Latvia. Apart from this the group also owns an investment
property in Riga which it rents to third parties. Each of these operating segments is
managed separately as each of these lines requires local resources.

The accounting policy for identifying segments is based on internal management
reporting information that is regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker.

Revenue reported below represents revenue generated from external customers.
There were no intersegment sales in the year. The group's reportable segments
under IFRS 8§ are direct sales attributable to each business activity.

The group operates solely in Latvia.
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Segment information (continued)

The group has three major customers in the cargo handling business and the
revenue from these customers amounts to Eur9,776,237 which represents 58% of
the total revenue of the group. Furthermore, the group has one major customer in
the rental business and the rental income from this customer amounts to
Eur193,451 which represents 40% of the total rental income of the group.

Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment after allocation of
central administration costs and finance costs based on services and finance
provided. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for

the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the group's
accounting policies described in note 2.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

to consolidated totals are reported below:

Profit before tax
2014 2013
Eur Eur
Total profit for reportable segments 7,422,885 7,888,846
Unallocated amounts:
Other unallocated amounts (1,925,505) (830,073)
5,497,380 7,058,773
Assets
2014 2013
Eur Eur
Total assets for reportable segments 45,376,737 44,338,359
Unallocated amounts:
Goodwill 13,184,904 13,184,904
Other unallocated amounts 1,472,623 1,061,745
58,585,008

60,034,264
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5.

Segment information (continued)

Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments
Unallocated amounts:

Debt securities in issue

Bank loans

Other unallocated amounts

2014 2013

Eur Eur

3,834,116 1,278,317
34,354,953 -

- 34,938,618

940,163 16,688,486

39,129,232 52,905,421

The group’s revenue and results from continuing operations from external
customers and information about its asset and liabilities by reportable segment are

detailed below.

Cargo
handling
and storage Property
of containers rental Unallocated Total
2014 2014 2014 2014
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Continuing operations

Revenue 16,950,345 - - 16,950,345
Other operating income - 402,988 262,924 665,912
Operating income 16,950,345 402,988 262,924 17,616,257
Profit before tax 7,140,644 282,241 (1,925,505) 5,497,380
Depreciation and amortisation 1,474,896 - - 1,474,896
Segment assets 36,960,030 8,416,707 14,657,527 60,034,264
Capital expenditure 1,950,570 - - 1,950,570
Segment liabilities 3,694,811 139,305 35,295,116 39,129,232
Income tax expense 258,180 36,307 35,366 329,853
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5.

Segment information (continued)

Cargo
handling
and storage Property
of containers rental Unallocated Total
2013 2013 2013 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur

Continuing operations
Revenue 17,647,774 =
- 374,525

- 17,647,774

Other operating income 88,482 463,007
Operating income 17,647,774 374,525 88,482 18,110,781
Profit before tax 7,620,678 268,168 (830,073) 7,058,773
Depreciation and amortisation 1,400,739 - - 1,400,739
Segment assets 36,166,778 8,171,581 14,246,649 58,585,008
Capital expenditure 3,905,039 - - 3,905,039
Segment liabilities 1,101,932 176,385 51,627,104 52,905,421
Income tax expense 226,471 32,723 1,666 260,760
Revenue

Revenue represents the amount receivable for services rendered during the year,

net of any indirect taxes, as follows:

Holding company
2014 2013
Eur Eur

Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur
Cargo, handling and
storage of containers 16,950,345 17,647,774
Other operating income
Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur
Rent and related income 488,894 426,738
Income from exchange flucation 135,098 -
Other operating income 41,920 36,269

Holding company
2014 2013
Eur Eur

665,912 463,007
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8.

Investment income

Interest income on bank deposits

Interest income on other loans
Interest income on related
party loans

Interest income on debt
concession agreements

Gain on fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Total interest income on financial

assets not classified at fair
value through profit or loss

Dividends from
equity instruments
Liquidation proceeds
from investment
Income from

other investments

Investment losses

Impairment losses on financial
assets

Loss on fair value of
derivative financial instrument

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
211 181 211 50
66,874 - - n
268,974 822,841 1,332,318 -
- 144,286 - -
- 32,392 - -
336,059 999,700 1,332,529 50
5,388 4,675 5,388 4,675
6,334 5,719 6,334 5,719
1,407 241 - -
349,188 1,010,335 1,344,251 10,444
Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
3,000 1,250 3,000 1,250
512,021 - - -
515,021 1,250 3,000 1,250
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10. Finance costs

Group Holding company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Eur Eur Eur Eur

Interest on bank loans 942,839 897,986 - -

Interest on amounts

payable to related entity - 43,349 - -
Interest on debt securities in

issue 869,055 - 869,055 -

Other financial costs 181,918 178,121 - -

1,993,812 1,119,456 869,055 -

11. Profit before tax

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
This is stated after charging:
Depreciation and amortisation 1,474,896 1,400,739 - -

The amount that is payable to the auditor is as follows:

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur

Total remuneration payable to the

parent company's auditors for the

audit of the financial statements 8,000 2,500 2,500 2,500
Total fees payable to other auditors 33,980 29,745 - -
Total fees payable to the parent

company's auditors for non-audit

services other than other assurance

services and tax advisory services 40,000 - - -

81,980 32,245 2,500 2,500
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12. Key management personnel compensation

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Directors' compensation:
Short-term benefits:
Fees and benefits 93,430 115,000 5,000 -
Other key management
personnel:
Short-term benefits:
Management remuneration 421,883 195,469 - -
515,313 310,469 5,000 -
13.  Staff costs and employee information
Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Staff costs:
Wages and salaries 3,125,472 3,092,723 - -
Social security costs 633,895 675,468 - -

3,759,367 3,768,191 - :

The average number of persons employed during the year, including executive
directors, was made up as follows:

Group Holding company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Number Number Number Number

Operations 184 184 - -
Administration 16 16 - -

200 200 & =

42



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2014

14.

Income tax expense

Current tax expense

Deferred tax (credit)/expense

(note 24)

Group Holding company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Eur Eur Eur Eur

367,257 238,959 35,366 1,566
(37,404) 21,801 . .

329,853 260,760 35,366 1,566

Tax applying the statutory domestic income tax rate and the income tax expense
for the year are reconciled as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the applicable
rate of 35%

Tax effect of:

Disallowed expenditure
Tax deductions

Different tax rates

of subsidiaries

operating in other
jurisdictions

Tax at source

Income not subject to tax

Income tax expense
for the year

Group Holding company

2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
5,497,380 7,058,773 413,500 5,191
1,924,083 2,470,571 144,725 1,817
369,635 188,571 17,752 1,756

(1,006,101)  (817,660) - -
(815,715) (1,377,895)  (124,844) (6)
(157) (4,408) (50) .
(141,892)  (198,418) (2,217)  (2,001)
329,853 260,760 35,366 1,566
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15.

Property, plant and equipment

Group

Cost or valuation

At 01.01.2013

Additions
Disposals
Reclassification

At 01.01.2014
Additions
Disposals
Reclassification

At 31.12.2014

Accumulated
depreciation
At 01.01.2013

Provision for
the year
Disposals

At 01.01.2014
Provision for
the year
Disposals

At 31.12.2014

Carrying amount

At 31.12.2013

At 31.12.2014

Furniture Fixed
Land and Plant and fittings and assets under

buildings equipment equipment construction Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
26,476,448 10,458,091 135,049 413,844 37,483,432
- 61,370 2,414 3,806,872 3,870,656
(146,880) (21,409) (1,207) - (169,496)

2,582,027 71,800 - (2,653,827) -
28,911,595 10,569,852 136,256 1,566,889 41,184,592
5,923 157,372 5,393 1,776,932 1,945,620
- (44,155) (3,932) (48,087)

91,546 40,611 - (132,157) -
29,009,064 10,723,680 137,717 3,211,664 43,082,125
2,068,231 6,940,386 51,083 - 9,059,700
554,274 735,100 20,768 - 1,310,142
(61,201) (21,409) (1,207) - (83,817)
2,561,304 7,654,077 70,644 - 10,286,025
646,539 715,445 20,672 - 1,382,656
- (44,155) (3,932) = (48,087)
3,207,843 8,325,367 87,384 - 11,620,594
26,350,291 2,915,775 65,612 1,566,889 30,898,567
25,801,221 2,398,313 50,333 3,211,665 31,461,531

The fair value of the land and buildings has been arrived at on the basis of a recent
valuation carried out by an independent professionally qualified valuer on the basis
of market value and is stated gross of any tax liability that would arise had the
property to be remeasured to fair value. The directors are of the opinion that the
fair value of the property has not altered significantly since the date of the
valuation and hence this is an appropriate estimate of the fair value at
31 December 2014.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
property is its current use. The fair value of the group’s land and buildings has

been arrived at using Level 2 inputs at the end of the reporting period.
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16.

17.

Intangible asset

Group

Cost
At 01.01.2013
Additions

At 01.01.2014
Additions

At 31.12.2014
Accumulated depreciation
At 01.01.2013

Provision for the year

At 01.01.2014
Provision for the year

At 31.12.2014

Carrying amount
At 31.12.2013

At 31.12.2014

Computer
software
Eur

1,774,236
34,383

1,808,619
4,950

1,813,569
1,347,218
90,597

1,437,815
92,240

1,530,055

370,804

283,514

The amortisation expenses on intangible assets has been included in the line item
“Administrative expenses” in the statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Investment property
Group

Fair value

At 01.01.2013/01.01.2014
At 31.12.2014

Carrying amount
At 31.12.2013

At 31.12.2014

Eur
5,183,596

5,183,596

5,183,596

5,183,596
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17.

18.

Investment property (continued)

The fair value of the investment property has been arrived at on the basis of a
recent valuation carried out by an independent professionally qualified valuer on
the basis of market value and is stated gross of any tax liability that would arise
had the property to be remeasured to fair value. The directors are of the opinion
that the fair value of the property has not altered significantly since the date of the
valuation and hence this is an appropriate estimate of the fair value at
31 December 2014. The group’s investment property with a carrying amount is
held as security in connection with bank borrowings.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use. The fair value of the group’s investment property
has been arrived at using Level 2 inputs at the end of the reporting period.

Operating leases — as lessor

Operating leases related to investment property owned by the company with lease
terms of between 5-10 years. The rental income earned under operating leases
amounted to Eur488,894 (2013 — Eur426.738).

Financial assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Holding company

These are stated at cost and comprise:

Investment
in subsidiaries
Eur

Carrying amount
At 31.12.2013 -
At 31.12.2014 2,800

The company’s proportion of ownership interest in subsidiaries at 31 December

2014 are as follows:
Proportion of

ownership

interest

%

Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA 100 (2013 — nil)

Mariner Finance Baltic SIA

(indirectly through Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA) 100 (2013 — nil)
Baltic Container Terminals SIA

(indirectly through Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA) 100 (2013 — nil)

Equinor Riga SIA (indirectly through Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA) 100 (2013 - nil)
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18.

Financial assets (continued)

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

The registered offices of the following subsidiaries are:

Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA — 1 Merkela Street, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia.
Mariner Finance Baltic SIA - 1 Merkela Street, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia.
Baltic Container Terminals SIA - 1, Kundsila Street, Riga, LV-1822, Latvia.
Equinor Riga SIA - 1 Merkela Street, Riga, LV-1050, Latvia.

The principal activities of following subsidiaries are:

Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA

Mariner Finance Baltic SIA

(indirectly through Mariner

Baltic Holdings SIA)

Baltic Container Terminals SIA

(indirectly through Mariner Baltic Holdings SIA)
Equinor Riga SIA (indirectly through Mariner Baltic
Holdings SIA)

Available-for-sale investments

Group and Holding company

Foreign
listed
debt
Eur

Fair value
At 31.12.2013 10,844

At 31.12.2014 7,844

Foreign
listed
equity
Eur

270,058

327,976

Principal activities
Holding company

Holding company
Port services

Rents out
Investment property

Total
Eur

280,902

335,820

These financial assets represent investments in foreign listed equity and debt
securities together with foreign listed funds which present.the company with
opportunity for return through dividend or interest income and -capital
appreciation. These investments are denominated in Euros.

The impairment loses on available-for-sale investments recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year amounted to
Eur3,000 (2013 — Eur1,250) and are included in investment losses.

47



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements
31 December 2014

18. Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Group Holding Company
Related Related
Loan to party Loan to party
parent loans Total subsidiaries loans Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur

Amortised cost

At 31.12.2013 2,916,665 18,333 2,934,998
Less: Amount

expected to be

settled within 12

months (shown under

current assets) - -

Amount expected
to be settled
after 12 months 2,916,665 18,333 2,934,998 3 -

Amortised cost

At 31.12.2014 2,916,665 513,333 3,429,998 43,770,000 500,000 44,270,000
Less: Amount

expected to be

settled within 12

months (shown under
current assets) - (500,000) (500,000) (1,926,351)  (500,000) (2,426,351)

Amount expected
to be settled
after 12 months 2,916,665 13,333 2,929,998 41,843,649 - 41,843,649

Loan to subsidiaries
Holding company:

The amounts owed by subsidiaries amounting to Eur!0,000,000 (2013 - EurNil)
bear interest at the rate of 5% per annum and is repayable by end of December
2020. The remaining loan of Eur33,770,000 bears interest at the rate of 6% and is
repayable by July 2024.

Related party loans
Group and holding company:

Loan amounting to Eur500,000 receivable from related party carries interest rate
of 3%, is unsecured and repayable on demand.

Loan to parent
Group:

The amount owed by parent company is interest free and repayable by February
2016.

48



Mariner Finance p.l.c.

Notes to the financial statements

31 December 2014

19. Inventories

Spare parts
Raw materials
Fuel

Other

20. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables
Amount owed by parent
Amounts owed by related parties
Prepayments

Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur

262,249 285,843
63,678 71,830
64,093 24,446

9,574 5,357

Holding company
2014 2013
Eur Eur

399,594 387,476

Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur

2,887,998 2,875,943

609,922 518,179
4,274
45,857 27,519

Holding company

2014 2013
Eur Eur

B 232
1,018,265 518,179
825,768 -
13,147 -

3,648,051 3,421,641

1,857,180 518,411

The terms and conditions of amounts owed by parent and related parties are
disclosed in note 31. These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

21. Trade and other payables

Trade payables
Other payables
Accruals

Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur

207,019 546,186
345,707 367,223

1,151,435 238,676

Holding company

2014 2013
Eur Eur
5,938 3,693
877,796 3,590

1,704,161 1,142,085

883,734 7,283

No interest is charged on trade and other payables.
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22. Bank loans

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Bank loans 1,458,446 34,938,618 - -
Less: amount due for settlement
within 12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (188,187) (4,333,084) - -
Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 1,270,259 30,605,534 - -
The bank loans are repayable as follows:
Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
On demand or within one year 188,187 4,333,084 - -
In the second year 188,187 - - -
In the third year 188,187 - - -
In the fourth year 188,187 B - -
After five years 705,698 30,605,53 - -

1,458,446 34,938,618 . -

The groups bank loan bears interest at rates at 2.7% per annum plus 3 months
EURIBOR (2013 — ranging between 1.6% and 5% per annum) and is secured by a
commercial pledge over subsidiary company’s assets.

During current year the proceeds of Eur35 million from issue of 5.3% 2024
redeemable bonds were mostly used to settle outstanding bank loans of the group.
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23.

Other financial liabilities

Group Holding company
2014 2013 2014 2013
Eur Eur Eur Eur
Amounts owed to related parties 46,249 - " -
Amounts owed to parent
company - 15,451,616 - -
Other loans 460,176 731,976 46,249 46,249
Deferred income 83,098 93,594
Fair value of derivative
financial instrument 512,021 = - -

1,101,544 16,277,186 46,249 46,249
Less: amount due for settlement

within 12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (274,251) (273,049) (46,249)  (46,249)

Amounts due for settiement
after 12 months 827,293 16,004,137 - -

In order to limit the effect of variable interest rate increases on loans from two
credit institutions, the Group entered into SWAP agreements with two credit
institutions. Each SWAP agreement derivative’s nominal value is Euri4,375,000.
The Group is swapping fixed rates ranging between 0.77% - 0.775% per annum
against 3 month EURIBOR. The swaps mature on 15 May 2018. At the end of
reporting period the total fair value of derivative’s amount to Eur512,021.

The terms and conditions of the related party loans are disclosed in note 31. The
amounts owed to parent company incorporates the consideration payable in
relation to the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings in 2014 for which
predecessor accounting is being applied with effect from 1 January 2013. The
liability of Eurl5,451,616 is net of amounts receivable, which were subsequently
assigned or paid as part of the group restructuring.
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24. Deferred taxation

Group
Acquired on
Opening acquisition of Recognised Closing
balance subsidiaries in profit or loss balance
Eur Eur Eur Eur
2014
Arising on:
Accelerated depreciation 579,890 - (39,257) 540,633
Provision for bad debts (2,230) - 2,230 -
Accruals for expected
vacation expenses (30,128) (377) (30,505)
547,532 - (37,404) 510,128
2013
Arising on:
Accelerated depreciation - 574,877 5,013 579,890
Provision for bad debts - (2,230) - (2,230)
Accruals for expected
vacation expenses - (46,915) 16,787 (30,128)
- 525,732 21,800 547,632

25. Debt securities in issue

Group and Holding company

Non- current
5.3% bonds redeemable 2024

2014 2013
Eur Eur
34,354,953 -

The bonds are disclosed at the value of the proceeds less the net book amount of

the issue costs as follows:

Face value of bonds

Issue costs
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Amortised cost

2014 2013
Eur Eur

35,000,000 -

656,198
(11,451) "

645,047 -

34,354,953 -
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25.

26.

27.

28.

Debt securities in issue (continued)

Following the board decision taken during the year, the company issued an
aggregate principal amount of Eur35 million in Bonds, having nominal value of
Eur 100 each, bearing interest at the rate of 5.3% per annum, payable in arrears.
These bonds are unsecured pursuant and subject to terms and conditions in the
prospectus dated 2 June 2014, are redeemable at their nominal value in July 2024.
The quoted market price as at 31 December 2014 for the 5.3% Bonds 2024 was
132.034. The weighted average effective interest rate at the end of the reporting
period was 5.47%.

The market value of debt securities on the last trading day before the statement of
financial position date was Eur37,460,500.

Share capital

Group and Holding company
2014 and 2013

Issued and
Authorised called up
Eur Eur
50,000 ordinary shares of Eur10 each,
all of which have been issued and called up 500,000 500,000

Other equity

As explained in note 29, this represents an amount of Eurl0,000,000 which is
repayable to the parent, Mariner Capital Limited, at the discretion of the company.
This amount is interest free and carries no fixed date of repayment. This amount
was recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statement of cash flows comprise the
following amount in the statement of financial position:

Group Holding company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Eur Eur Eur Eur

Cash at bank 2,162,138 1,156,921 73,192 38,631

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on bank deposit rates.
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29.

30.

Significant non-cash transactions

During the period under review, the company was assigned a loan receivable of
Eur10,000,000 (as disclosed in note 18). The consideration of Eur10,000,000 for
this assignment is payable exclusively at the discretion of the company (as
disclosed in note 27). The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
exclusively at the option of the company.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

In 2014, Mariner Finance plc acquired control over 100% interest in Baltic
Container Terminals SIA and Equior Riga SIA which are both registered in Latvia.

The carrying amount on 1 January 2013 of the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed were:

Acquiree's

carrying amount

before

combination

Eur

Goodwill 13,184,904
Bank borrowings (8,602,280)
Cash and cash equivalents 4,595,086
Current tax asset 890,096
Deferred tax liabilities (625,732)
Intangible assets 427,018
Inventories 414,503
Investment property 5,179,848
Other financial liabilities (4,217,184)
Property, plant and equipment 28,423,730
Trade and other receivables 2,916,408
Trade and other payables (2,685,202)
Net assets acquired 40,001,195
Consideration transferred (41,900,000)

Effect on other equity recognised

on acquisition of subsidiaries 1,898,805

Predecessor accounting resulted in a difference on acquisition between the
consideration payable in exchange for the acquired entities and the amounts at
which the assets and liabilities of the acquired entities were initially recognised,
any such differences are included within equity unless they represent amounts
payable in the subsequent period, in which case, these are included within

liabilities.
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31.

Related party disclosures

The parent and ultimate parent company of Mariner Finance p.l.c. is Mariner
Capital Limited and MEH Holdings Limited, respectively, which are both

incorporated in Malta.

The directors consider the ultimate controlling party to be Marin Hili who

indirectly owns 70% of Mariner Finance p.l.c.

During the year under review, the group and company entered into transactions
with related parties as set out below.

During the year company paid remuneration to key management personnel as

disclosed in note 12.

Group
2014 2013
Related Related
party Total party Total
activity activity activity activity
Eur Eur % Eur Eur %
Administration expenses
Related party
fransactions with:
Other related parties 718,039 3,886,392 18 600,000 3,995,471 15
Investement income
Related party
transactions with:
Other related parties 43,389 349,188 12 74,903 1,344,251 6
Holding Company
2014 2013
Related Related
party Total party Total
activity activity activity activity
Eur Eur % Eur Eur %
Investment income
Related party
fransactions with:
Subsidiary 1,328,044 -
Other related parties 4,274 -
1,332,318 1,344,251 99 - 10,444 -
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31.

32,

33.

Related party disclosures (continued)
Other related party transactions are disclosed in notes 29 and 30.

No expense has been recognised during the year arising from bad and doubtful
debts in respect of amounts due by related parties.

The terms and conditions of amounts owed by/to parent and related parties are
disclosed in note 20, 23 and 27.

Capital commitments

Group
2014 2013
Eur Eur

Contracted but not provided for 1,090,000 -

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

At 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities classified with current assets and current liabilities
respectively approximated the fair values due to the short-term maturities of these
assets and liabilities. The fair values of non-current financial assets that are not
measured at fair value, other than investments in subsidiaries, are not materially
different from their carrying amounts due to their current rates of interest. The fair
value of available-for-sale securities is disclosed in note 18. The fair values of non-
current financial liabilities, other than debt securities and derivatives, are not
materially different from their carrying amounts, due to their current rates of
interest. The fair value of debt securities is disclosed in note 25. The fair value of
derivatives is disclosed in note 23.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date.

For financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value
on a recurring basis, the Company determines when transfers are deemed to have
occurred between Levels in the hierarchy at the end of each reporting period.
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33.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3.

Group and holding company

Fair value measurement at end of
the reporting period using:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur

2014
Financial assets
Available-for-sale investments

- Foreign listed equity instruments 327,976 - - 327,976

- Foreign listed debt instruments - 7,844 = 7,844
327,976 7,844 - 335,820

Financial liabilities

At fair value through profit

and loss

- Derivative financial instruments 512,021 B - 512,021

2013

Available-for-sale investments

- Foreign listed equity instruments 270,058 - - 270,058

- Foreign listed debt instruments - 10,844 E 10,844
270,058 10,844 - 280,902
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33.  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments, other than
investments in subsidiaries that are not measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value, other than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable
approximations of fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3.

Group
Fair value measurement at end of
the reporting period using:
Carrying
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total amount
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Loans to related
parties - 3,429,998 - 3,429,998 3,429,998
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
- Debt securities 37,460,500 - - 37,460,500 34,354,953
- Bank loans - 1,458,446 - 1,458,446 1,458,446
- Other loans - 460,176 - 460,176 460,176
37,460,500 1,918,622 - 39,379,122 36,273,575
2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Loans to related
parties - 2,934,998 - 2,934,998 2,934,998
Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
- Bank loans - 34,938,618 - 34,938,618 34,938,618
- loan from parent
company - 15,451,616 - 15,451,616 15,451,616
- Other loans - 731,976 - 731,976 731,976
- 51,122,210 - 51,122,210 51,122,210
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33.  Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Holding company
Fair value measurement at end of
the reporting period using:
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total amount
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2014
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- receivables from
parent company - 1,018,265 - 1,018,265 1,018,265
subsidiaries - 44,595,768 - 44,595 768 44,595,768
related parties - 500,000 - 500,000 500,000
Total - 46,114,033 - 46,114,033 46,114,033
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
- Debt securities 37,460,500 = - 37,460,500 34,354,953
- Other loans - 46,249 - 46,249 46,249
Total 37,460,500 34,401,202 - 37,506,749 34,401,202
Carrying
Level 1 Level 2 Level3 Total amount
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2013
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- amounts owed by
parent company - 518,179 - 518,179 518,179
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
- Other loans - 46,249 - 46,249 46,249
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34.

Financial risk management

The exposures to risk and the way risks arise, together with the company’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing and measuring these risks are
disclosed in more detail below.

The objectives, policies and processes for managing financial risks and the
methods used to measure such risks are subject to continual improvement and
development.

Where applicable, any significant changes in the company’s exposure to financial
risks or the manner in which the company manages and measures these risks are
disclosed below.

Where possible, the company aims to reduce and control risk concentrations.
Concentrations of financial risk arise when financial instruments with similar
characteristics are influenced in the same way by changes in economic or other
factors. The amount of the risk exposure associated with financial instruments
sharing similar characteristics is disclosed in more detail in the notes to the
financial statements.

Credit risk

Financial assets which potentially subject the company and group to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of receivables, debt investments
and cash at bank.

Receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for
doubtful debts is made where there is an identified loss event which, based on
previous experience, is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash
flows. Credit risk with respect to receivables is limited due to credit control
procedures and the large number of customers comprising the company’s debtor
base. Credit risk in relation to the loans and receivables due from related parties is
also limited given the cash flows generated by the underlying subsidiary.

Quoted investments are acquired after assessing the quality of the relevant
investments. Cash at bank is placed with reliable financial institutions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements, which
is net of impairment losses, represents the company’s maximum exposure to credit
risk without taking account of the value of any collateral obtained.

Management considers the credit quality of these financial assets as being
acceptable. These financial assets do not include any material balances with past

default experience.

Guarantees are disclosed in note 22.
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34.

Financial risk management (continued)
Currency risk

Foreign currency transactions arise when the group buys or sells goods or services
whose price is denominated in a foreign currency, borrows or lends funds when the
amount payable or receivable are denominated in a foreign currency, acquires or
disposes of assets or incurs or settles a liabilities denominated in a foreign
currency. Foreign currency transactions comprise mainly transactions in Latvian
Lats (for 2013) and USD. The risk arising from foreign currency transactions is
managed by regular monitoring of the relevant exchange rates and directors’
reaction to material movements thereto.

Furthermore, the risk arising from transactions in Lats entered into by the
company’s subsidiaries in their local currency is mitigated by the fact that the
Latvian Lats joined the Exchange Rate Mechanism (ERM II) on 2 May 2005, and
observes a central rate of 0.702804 to the Euro with standard fluctuation margins
of +/- 15%. However, Latvia unilaterally maintains a 1% fluctuation band around
the central rate. Latvia joined Euro zone on 1 January 2014.

Interest rate risk

The company and group has taken out bank, debt securities and other facilities to
finance its operations as disclosed in notes 22, 23 and 25. The interest rates
thereon and the terms of such borrowings are disclosed accordingly. The effective
interest rate on loans and receivables and financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost is disclosed in notes 22, 23 and 25.

The group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on borrowings and debt
instruments carrying a floating interest rate and to fair value interest rate risk on
borrowings and debt instruments carrying a fixed interest rate to the extent that
they are measured at fair value. Investments in equity instruments are not exposed
to interest rate risk.

Management monitors the movement in interest rates and, where possible, reacts to
material movements in such rates by adjusting its selling prices or by restructuring
its financing structure.

The carrying amounts of the company’s financial instruments carrying a rate of
interest at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in the notes to the financial

statements.

The interest rates on loans and receivables and cash are disclosed in notes 18 and
28.
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34.

Financial risk management (continued)
Liquidity risk

The company monitors and manages its risk to a shortage of funds by maintaining
sufficient cash, by matching the maturity of both its financial assets and financial
liabilities and by monitoring the availability of raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments.

The company enjoys the full support of its related parties and shareholders and the
company’s related party balances are expected to continue to form part of the
company’s effective financing structures. The company is therefore confident that
it is in a position to continue to meet its commitments as and when they fall due.

The following maturity analysis for financial liabilities shows the remaining
contractual maturities using the contractual undiscounted cash flows on the basis
of the earliest date on which the group and company can be required to pay. The
analysis includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Group
On demand
or within 5 years
1year 2years 3years 4years andover Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2014

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 2,166,599 88,472 - - - 2,255,071
Fixed rate instruments 2,034,664 1,860,082 1,855,000 2,361,939 46,130,000 54,241,685
Variable rate instruments 233,399 226,295 220,648 920,703 - 1,601,045

4,434,662 2,174,849 2,075,648 3,282,642 46,130,000 58,097,801

2013

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 1,476,528 98,921 - - - 1,575,449
Fixed rate instruments 237,290 230,486 - - - 467,776
Variable rate instruments6,370,403 21,388,899 8,206,276 7,809,198 14,427,163 58,201,939

8,084,221 21,718,306 8,206,276 7,809,198 14,427,163 60,245,164
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34. TFinancial risk management (continued)

Ligquidity risk (continued)

Holding company
On demand
or within 5 years
1year 2years 3years 4years andover Total
Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur Eur
2014

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 929,983 - - - - 929,983
Fixed rate instruments 1,804,178 1,860,082 1,855,000 1,849,918 46,130,000 53,499,178

2,734,161 1,860,082 1,855,000 1,849,918 46,130,000 54,429,161

2013

Non-derivative

financial liabilities

Non-interest bearing 53,532 - - - - 53,5632

Capital risk management

The company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to
continue as a going concern and to maximise the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the company consists of amounts included in notes 22, 23
and 25 and items presented within equity net of cash at bank balances.

The company’s directors manage the company’s capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. The capital structure
is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
company balances its overall capital structure through the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

The company’s overall strategy remains unchanged from the prior year.
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Independent auditor’s report
to the members of

Mariner Finance p.l.c.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mariner finance p.l.c. and its group set out
on pages 5 to 63, which comprise the statements of financial position of the company and the group as
at 31 December 2014, and the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the company and the group for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’ responsibilities on page 4, the directors of the
company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and the
requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company limited by guarantee (“DTTL"), its network of member firms, and their related
entities. DTTL and each of its member firms are legally separate and independent entities. DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global") does not provide services to clients,
Please see www.deloitte.com/mt/about for a more detailed description of DTTL and its member firms,

Deloitte Malta refers to a civil partnership, constituted between limited liability companies, and its affiliated operating entities; Deloitte Services Limited, Deloitte Legal,
Deloitte Technology Solutions Limited and Deloitte Audit Limited. The latter is authorised to provide audit services in Malta in terms of the Accountancy Profession Act. A
list of the corporate partners, as well as the principals authorised to sign reports on behalf of the firm, is available at www.deloitte.com/mt/about 64
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Mariner
Finance p.l.c. and its group as at 31 December 2014 and of the company’s and its group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act (Cap. 386).

ool

Annabelle Zammit Pace as Director
in the name and on behalf of
Deloitte Audit Limited

Registered auditor

28 April 2015
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